
C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\6-13-16 Meeting Minutes.docx1 

 

Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee Minutes 

Monday, June 13, 2016 
   

1. Call to Order: The Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee meeting was called to 
order at 9:08 AM in the County Board Room of the Trempealeau County Courthouse located at 
36245 Main St, Whitehall, WI by Jon Schultz, Chair.  

2. Certification of Open Meeting Law Requirements: Kirstie Heidenreich stated that the Open 
Meeting Law Requirements have been met.  

3. Roll Call: Members present: Jon Schultz, Jean Galasinski, Chuck Walek, Curt Skoyen, and Sarah 
Ecker. Jeanne Nutter arrived at 9:20 AM. Also present were Kevin Lien, Becky Arneson, Kirstie 
Heidenreich, Tess Thompson, Bob Pietrek, Debbie Foss, Dick Miller, and Linda Mossman. 

4. Adoption of Agenda: Motion to approve the agenda by Chuck Walek; seconded by Curt Skoyen. 
Motion carried.  

5. Adoption of Minutes: Motion to approve meeting minutes from 5-16-16 by Jean Galasinski; 
seconded by Curt Skoyen. Motion carried.  

6. Discussion of CapX Funding – Pat Malone: Pat Malone from UW-Extension stated that the 
previous Parks Committee received $73,000 in CapX Funding and currently has until the end of 
2016 to spend it. Kevin Lien, Interim Parks Director, asked Pat if there is a possibility of getting 
another extension to spend the money since the new Committee hasn’t had much time to develop a 
game plan. Pat responded that there would be a chance for an extension only if the Committee 
came forth with a very specific plan; likely an extension would not be granted if there was not a 
specific game plan or building plan in place for the $73,000. Bob Pietrek asked Pat if there was 
other CapX funding available that was not being used; Pat stated there was not. Kirstie 
Heidenreich asked the Committee to consider doing some type of interpretative element or 
classroom addition on to the Kloss Shelter. Jean Galasinski suggested to the Chair that a sub-
committee be created to discuss Kloss Shelter renovations and possible interpretive elements. Pat 
Malone suggested to the Committee that the majority of the money but used towards fixing and 
modernizing the shelter as much as possible prior to adding to it or renovating it as an educational 
shelter. Jeanne Nutter mentioned that Pietrek Park would not need to be working alone on an 
educational movement; partnering can be done with Trempealeau Wildlife Refuge, 4-H, UW-
Extension, etc. Jon Schultz approved a shelter improvements sub-committee of Jeanne Nutter, Jean 
Galasinski, and DLM staff Kirstie Heidenreich, who will has their first meeting on June 21st.   

7. Trempealeau Trails - Travis Mossman: Agenda item tabled; Travis was not in attendance.  
8. Committee Mission Statement and Job Descriptions: Elsa Kulig, Human Resources Director, 

surveyed counties around Wisconsin how they structure and pay/hire their Park, Recreation, and 
Economic Development staff. She presented the Committee with multiple handouts as examples of 
various job descriptions, departments, and oversight. The Committee found that no two counties 
are the same and Pat Malone stated that this Committee is the policy board for how the department 
structuring will go on from here. She stated that it would be incredibly hard to find a professional 
with a skill set that encompasses Park Management and Tourism and Economic Development. 
Jeanne Nutter stated she would prefer to see the parks stay with the Department of Land 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\6-13-16 Meeting Minutes.docx2 

 

Management and that it hasn’t worked in the past when there were “little silos” where everyone 
was working in different areas, and the parks, tourism, and economic development all need to 
work together. Elsa summarized that the Committee really has four different options at this point: 
Option #1: Create a separate department that address Parks, Tourism and Economic Development. 
Option #2: Have Parks, Tourism and Economic Development be a branch within an existing 
department such as Land Management and create a Supervisor position there, yet also utilize 
existing staff in that department. Option #3: Put parks in Land Management and separate out 
Tourism and Economic Development. Option #4: Do research about bringing in a professional and 
have them come present the Committee with options. Elsa suggested getting someone with a 
marketing background for the Tourism needs. Jon Schultz stated that the Committee will have until 
the next meeting to consider the options and take action on pursuing one of those paths at the next 
meeting.  

9. Ashley for the Arts Weekend Staffing Concerns: Becky Arneson stated that she has been 
working with Jason Lockington from Ashley and he has vocalized his worries that there will not be 
enough staff at the Park to accommodate the voluminous guests that will be attending the Ashley 
for the Arts Weekend. Kevin Lien stated that he has talked with the Sheriff’s Department and they 
already have plans to greatly increase the patrolling in the Park for this weekend. Becky said 
nearly all of the Park is already booked for the weekend and she has concerns that many others 
will show up that weekend and expect to find a spot to camp. Curt Skoyen suggested having 
someone at the gate and stating that the campground is full and only allowing people in with proof 
of registration. Jeanne Nutter asked the Committee if they would consider charging others a $10 
fee to park their vehicle overnight, which is a typical parking fee for large events. Kevin said he 
envisions having staff at the gate to monitor those entering and that he and other staff are 
considering spending the weekend there to accommodate the continual workload.  

10. Camper Repair: Becky Arneson asked the Committee for guidance on what the Committee would 
like to do with the camper that has extensive electrical, water, rodent, and smoking damage. She 
stated it cannot be fixed by Trempealeau County maintenance staff. Chuck Walek made a motion 
to gather an estimate to repair the camper and Jon Schultz seconded the motion. Motion carried.  

11. Vehicle Sale/Possible Purchase: Kevin Lien reported that the Park currently has two trucks at the 
Park, both late 80s/early 90s high-mileage vehicles that came from the Highway Department. He 
recommended selling one or both vehicles and purchasing a reliable vehicle. Tess Thompson, Park 
Manager, stated that neither vehicle is better off than the other and it simply depends on the day. 
Kevin said he would be able to purchase a more reliable one for under $5,000 and has some 
possibilities in mind. Jeanne Nutter made a motion to sell both vehicles on the State of WI surplus 
site and purchase a reliable vehicle. Jean Galasinski seconded. Motion carried. Kevin said he will 
talk to Rian Radtke, Corp Counsel, and find out the proper procedures for selling/purchasing.  

12. Tool Inventory and Purchase: Kevin informed the Committee that a majority of the power tools 
and other necessary tools are no longer at the Park and new tools must be purchased in order for 
the Park Manager to do her job. Jeanne Nutter made a motion for needed tools to be purchased 
with the caveat that everything must be inventoried and documented for future use. Jean Galasinski 
seconded and also requested that she and the entire Committee receive a list of the tool inventory. 
Jeanne stated this is likely the third time the tools have been purchased and they keep disappearing 
so a complete inventory must be put together and re-checked at the close of the season. Jon Schultz 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\6-13-16 Meeting Minutes.docx3 

 

asked that the motion include putting new locks on all the buildings so that security is not an issue. 
Motion carried.  

13. Update on Pietrek Park Plumbing and Well Work: Kevin Lien informed the Committee that 
Semingson Aberle Plumbing has re-submitted their bid to finish the plumbing work because they 
previously included sales tax inadvertently. Since the bill is now under $5,000, it no longer has to 
go out through a bidding process. Jean Galasinski made a motion to pay Semingson Aberle 
Plumbing $4,935 for work completed; Jeanne Nutter seconded. Motion carried.  

14. Review Bids and Possible Approval of Handicap Access Improvements: Jon Schultz opened 
the bids received for handicap access improvements to buildings at the Park. The bids received 
were from Troy Rebarchek for $2,426 and Wegman Construction for $2,202.  Chuck Walek made 
a motion to accept Wegman’s bid; Jeanne Nutter seconded it. Motion carried.  

15. Priority List of Improvement and Maintenance Projects: The Committee reviewed a list of 
needed projects to be done at the Park. Jean Galasinski stated that some of the needed items for 
educational purposes can be tied in to grants that will be applied for in the future. The Committee 
tabled the list for future review and prioritization.   

16. Campground Non-Payment Procedures: DLM Fiscal Manager Becky Arneson stated there have 
been a few problems with non-payment of campers, campers not paying a $10 dump fee, and 
returned checks. Becky said that several campers have said that they have never had to pay in the 
past due to the previous Park Manager stating they can stay for free. Jean Galasinski told Tess and 
Becky to simply call dispatch when people will not pay for their campsite, as technically those 
citizens are trespassing. Dick Miller encouraged Becky to refer returned checks to the DA’s office, 
who has an excellent program for dealing with such situations. Curt Skoyen said we will have to 
leave the prices as posted this year but for the next season the Committee should consider re-
structuring the price structure to raise it and always include the dump station fee.  

17. Status of Website Creation: Becky Arneson updated the Committee, stating that there is a new 
possibility that the Park may be able to use ESRI software to develop an online payment system 
and the $12,000 website cost would disappear with this. Becky said she will continue to keep the 
Committee posted as this potentially progresses.  

18. TCC’s Request to Offer Wi-Fi at Pietrek Park: Kevin said that he was contacted by Buck 
Webb, COO of Tri-County Communications about TCC’s desire to offer Wi-Fi at Pietrek Park. 
The installation of Wi-Fi would be free to the County but TCC would charge a small user fee via 
PayPal to campers that utilized the services.  

19. Approval of Farm Progress Days Park MOU: Kevin Lien stated that Kirstie Heidenreich has 
been working with Mary Gullicksrud, Executive Director of Trempealeau County Healthcare 
Center, to create a Memorandum of Understanding with the Healthcare Center Board of Directors 
regarding the maintenance and care of Farm Progress Days Park. The Healthcare Center Board of 
Directors already signed the MOU at their Board Meeting in May. Kirstie stated that the one 
caveat TCHHC asked for was that the Parks, Tourism, and Economic Development Committee 
split the electricity bill with them. Jeanne Nutter made a motion to accept the MOU with TCHCC, 
Curt Skoyen seconded. Motion passed. Jon Schultz and Kevin Lien officially signed the MOU 
which will go on file in the Department of Land Management and with TCHCC.  

20. Approval of Pietrek Park Rules: Kirstie Heidenreich stated that there are currently no rules 
posted at Pietrek Park. She said she has been working with Rian Radtke to tie each rule back to 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\6-13-16 Meeting Minutes.docx4 

 

part of the Trempealeau County Campground Code so that each rule may be enforceable with a 
possible forfeiture. She presented the Committee with a finalized set of rules to be posted at the 
Park and on the website, and asked that the Committee approves the rules. Chuck Walek made a 
motion to approve the new Pietrek Park rules; Chuck Walek seconded it. Jean Galasinski asked if 
any of the revenue from the forfeitures would go back to the Park and Kevin Lien responded that 
those are through the Sheriff’s Department and none of the money would go back to the Park. 
Motion carried.  

21. Opportunity for Public Comments: Linda Mossman stated that Monday mornings are very hard 
for citizens involved in tourism to make it to the meetings. She asked what revenue the Park has 
generated since year to date. Becky Arneson reported there has been about $7,000 collected. Linda 
asked that the amount of revenue collected is stated at each meeting. She also said that the 
Committee has spent 2.5 hours talking about the Park and asked if the Committee could form a 
Park Sub-Committee and have all Park decisions made there and then brought to the larger 
Committee. She then stated that Trempealeau County is currently lagging $96,490 in sales tax 
collections over the first four months of the year, compared to the first four months of the last year. 
She said this trend will continue and won’t get better unless something is done through the 
Committee and keep in mind that what decisions are made now will be effecting the coming years, 
versus an immediate effect. Linda said that with $250,000 coming in from tourism in the county, 
more time in the meetings must be devoted to tourism and economic development issues. Jon 
Schultz stated that the $250,000 in sales tax revenue pre-exists this current Committee and that this 
Committee is not the driving force of that money. Jeanne Nutter said that currently the Committee 
is working on how to formulate the Parks, Tourism, and Economic Development in to a 
comprehensive plan and as time goes on, the focus will migrate towards tourism and economics 
but for now there are a lot of immediate needs at the Park. Kirstie Heidenreich presented a 
comment that was phoned in from Karen Geske to be presented to the Committee in the public 
comment session. Karen stated that she ran in to a group of motorcyclists from Minnesota at Kwik 
Trip the other day and the motorcyclists were looking for a scenic roadway map of Trempealeau 
County. Karen asked if Trempealeau County would consider partnering with Buffalo County to 
make a map of scenic views and by-ways. Jeanne Nutter said that there is currently a wine country 
map for motorcyclists around the area but that is a little different. This item was tabled for the next 
meeting for further discussion.  

22. Set Next Meeting Date: The next meeting will two-fold: On Tuesday, July 5th at 9:00AM there 
will be a special joint meeting between the Executive Finance Committee and Parks, Tourism, and 
Economic Development Committee in the County Board Room of the Courthouse. Immediately 
following at 10:00AM there will be a regular meeting of the Parks, Tourism, and Economic 
Development Committee in the County Board Room.  

23. Adjourn: Motion to adjourn at 11:45AM by Chuck Walek and seconded by Jean Galasinski. 
Motion unanimously carried.  

 

 
 
Submitted by: Kirstie Heidenreich, recording secretary 


